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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Kailash Super-Speciality Hospital Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kailash Super-Speciality Hospital Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), and the Statement of Cash Flows and statement of Changes in
Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, and a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
requited and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act (*Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive Tncome, its cash flows and a
change in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (*SAs”)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters

1. We could not get fully the balance confirmations from the vendors and thus the year-end balauces of
trade payables appearing in the financial statements are subject to reconciliaion and confirmation. In
this regard, the management and those charged with governance have represented us that the
confirmation letters have been sent to vendors and few vendors have confirmed the balance and upon
receiving the balance confirmation from remaining vendors, there would not be significant differences
in the balances and the loss/profit, if any, arising out of such reconciliation would be considered i the
year reconciliation done.

9. Tn accordance with the roadmap for implementation of IND AS for companies, as announced by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the company has voluntarily adopted Ind AS from April 1, 2023 with an
effective date of April 1, 2022 for such transition. For period up to and including year ended March 31,
9093, the company has prepared and presented its financial statement m accordance with the erstwhile
generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). Inn order to give effect of the transition
to Ind AS, these financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024, together with the comparative
financial information for the previous year ended March 31, 2023 and the transition date balance sheet as
at April 1, 2022 have been prepared under Ind AS.
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The Transition has mnvolved significant change m the company's policies and process relating to the
financial reporting including generation of reliable and supportable information. Further the management
has exercised significant judgment for giving an appropriate offect of the first time adoption principle of
Ind AS 101, as at transition date and to determine the impact of the new accounting framework on
certain accounting and disclosure requirement.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Reporting of Key Audit matters as per SA 701- ‘Key Audit Matters’ are not applicable to the Company as it 1s
unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors’ Report to the shareholders including Annexure to Board’s Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 184(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows & changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Ind AS
specified under section 188 of the act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management & Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going-concern

. . . . . . . s g . ey
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either inteénds to. liquidate
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the Company or to cease Operaions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors
are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted n
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. As part of
an audit in accordance with SAs, we cxel cise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going CONCErn.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstaternents in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the cconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statemnents may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in () planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in i;)tgnlal control that we
identify during our audit. 0
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirernents
1. As required by Section 148(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for not complying with the requirements of the
audit trail as stated in 1(h) (vi) below.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and statement of change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 138 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, is as
stated in paragraph (b) above

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our

report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i There are no pending litigations that needs to be disclosed in its financial statements hence, this para
is not applicable.

ii, The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
protection fund.

iv. () The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 64 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium Or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or mn
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediariesi’)«»tffvviﬂa‘\ the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall 5

A




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT Mehrotra & Mehrotra
To The Members of Kailash Super-Speciality Hospital Private Limited Chartered Accountants
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Page 5 of 12

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed n
Note 65 to financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest In other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ulumate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under subclause () and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. In our opinion, the company has not paid dividend during the year hence this para is not applicable
to the company.

vi. The Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded 1n the respective software, except that:

i. In respect of an accounting software (HIS) used for maintenance of its Revenue, audit trail
feature was not enabled throughout the year;

ii. In respect of an accounting software used by for mainfaining payroll master and for processing
payroll, the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data
changes throughout the year; '

{ii. In respect of Fixed asset accounting the company is maintaining it on Excel software, the audit
trail feature was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes throughout the
yecar;

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software for the period for which the
audit trail feature was operating.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
9023, reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 9094 and will be applicable from second
year onwards.
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9. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 9020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA

Partner

(Membership No. 507946)

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024

UDIN: 24507946BKFXDS6532
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragr aph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date) Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 9018 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kailash Super-Speciality Hospital
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s R_esponsibi]ity

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively i1 all material respects. Our audit mvolves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand
or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Gnancial statements for external
purposes in accordaice with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accur ately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company arc being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely«-detec\tion of
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unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements. ‘

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India except the internal financial
controls over financial reporting in respect of purchase of inventory and its consumption and all other

transactions, which needs to be more adequate and effective.

For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA

CA. Safijay Kumar Ra:
Partner )

(Membership No. 50794 5

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024

UDIN: 24507946BKFXDS6532
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragt aph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of Kailash Super-Speciality Hospital Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

1. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in-progress.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b. Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in-progress were physically verified during
the year by the Management in accordance with a programme of verification, which in our opinion provides
for physical verification of all the Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in-progress at reasonable
intervals having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its activities. Management has found
discrepancies on verification amounting to Rs. 9.36 lacs and which has been provided in books without
adjusting against individual items of PPE. Actual adjustments will take place once the detailed physical
verification is completed by outsourced agency.

c. Based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to
us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties of Jand and buildings (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital
work in progress, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. Immovable
properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been pledged as security for loans, guarantecs,
etc., are held in the name of the Company based on the confirmations directly received by us from
lenders.

d. The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment including intangible assets
during the year.

e. On the information and explanation furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year
or are pending against the Company as at 31 March 2024 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

9. (A) The inventories of medical consumables and general items were physically verified during the year by
the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when
compared with books of account.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs.5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. According to the information and explanations given to
us, the quarterly returns or statements comprising stock statements, book debt statements and other
stipulated financial information filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are m
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters. However, we
have not received the quarterly returns which has been submitted by the Company.
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3. (A) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, the
Company has given guarantee to fellow subsidiary in respect of which the aggregate amount at the balance
sheet date with respect to guarantee are as follows.

(Figurcs in Rs. Lacs)

S. No Nature Aggregate amount Outstanding at
transaction during|  the balance Remarks
the year sheet date
1 LG 14515.00 14515.00 \ Fellow subsidiary
Given

The above amount is appearing in Note .49 to the financial statements.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given unsecured
loan to any company hence clause 3(B) to 3(F) is not applicable to the company

4. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions
of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 n respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v)of the order is not applicable.

6. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 m respect of healthcare services rendered. We have broadly reviewed the books
of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for mamtenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been
made and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

7. In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and

Service Tax, provident fund, employces’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities to the extent these are applicable except some delay in deposit of TDS.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records, there were undisputed dues oufstanding for more than six months in relation to ESI and EPF
Payable amounting to Rs.10.90 lacs (FY20-21) and EPF employee contribution amounting to Rs.0.82
lacs (FY21-22).

8. According to the information and explanations furnished by the management and based on the audit
procedurcs carried out during the course of audit, we have not come across any transactions not recorded
‘4 the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

9. (a) According to the records of the Company examined and as per our information and explanation, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis foO\,l,.r:;-,@}ldit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any baiik ot I

government or any government authority.
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

(o) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has utilized
the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were

obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the

Company.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures and
on an overall examination of financial staterments of the Company, we report that the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,

associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held i its subsidiaries
or joint ventures or associates.

() The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the year and hence
reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a)During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on
the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order 1s not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The provision regarding Internal Audit is not applicable to the company. Hence, reporting under clause
xiv{a) and xiv (b) are not applicable

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with any of its directors or
persons connected with such directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable to the Company.

(a) As per our information, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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17.

18.

19.

20,

(b) As per our information, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause (xvi)(b) of the Order 1s not
applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the Regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) Based on the information and explanation provided by the management of the Company, the Group
has no CIC as part of the Group.

The Company has not ‘neurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit. However the
company incurred cash loss of Rs. 6.05 Lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and accordingly
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) are not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, (Asset Liability Maturity (ALM) pattern) other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee NOT any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

There are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of
the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA

(Membership No. 0507946)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28 September 2024

UDIN: 24507946BKFXDS6532



Kailash Super Speciziity Hospital Private Limited
CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts are T in lacs, uniess stated otherwise)

ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant & equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Intangible assets
(d) Right-of-use assets
(e) Financial assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Loans

(111) Other financial assets
(f) Deferred tax assets (net)
(g) Non-current tax assets (net)
(h) Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets

II. Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(111) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets
Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS (I+IT)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Equity

(i) Equity share capital

(i) Other equity

Total Equity attributable to Owners of company

LIABILITIES
II. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(u1) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (nef)
(d) Other non-current ligbilities
Total Non-current Liabilities

II1. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
@) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabititics
(1) Trade payables
Tofal ouisianding dues of micro enterprises and small enierprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors ofher than micro enterprises and

small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities (IL+1IT)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (I+II+IIT)

Maierial accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial staiements.

For Mehroira & Mehroira
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regiafrald®

CA Sanjay Kumar Rai
Partmer

% \ FRN:000228C

Place: New Delhi
Dale: September 28, 2024

Note
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13
14
15

16
17

18
19

20
21
22
23
24
25

26
27

28

28
29
30
31

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1,2022
4,286.45 4,535 90 4,781.73
1.02 2.78 5.92
13.15 17.79 22.43
2506 91.49 521.64
45825 301.20 245.23
24.83 28.08 8.84
4,808.76 4,977.24 5,585.79
11.76 11.76 14.79
995.10 2,146 85 2,245 99
78.35 698.67 877.16
0.28 0.44 1.30
69.90 247.09 29384
13.15 16.40 25.20
1,168.54 3,121.21 3,458.28
5,977.30 8,098.45 9,044.07
20000 20000 20000
124.92 (414.66) (72.82)
324.92 (214.66) 127.18
2,445.97 2,206.36 5,021.11
9.51 14.08 18.27
41.24 28 60 20 66
85.97 234.89 236.45
2,582.69 2,483.93 5,296.49
1,711.33 3,082.59 2,385.63
4,57 4,19 3.99
17.76 24.81 -
579.62 151.46 26824
477.12 776.75 251.25
62.06 86.79 82.17
217.23 802.59 629.12
3,069.69 5,829.18 3,620.40
5,652.38 8,313.11 8,916.89
5,977.30 8,098.45 9,044.07

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

Director

Rajesh Sharma
Director
DIN: 02726305

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024

Dr. Ankit Gupta
Director
DIN: (0285321

Rajvir Singh
Chi

’ A Ay —P=

fficer

PAN: AHDPS4524P

Place: New Delhi

Date: September 28, 2024
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Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are Z in lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses

Cost of materials/services purchased
Changes in inventories of stock in trade
Employee benefit expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-II)

Less: Exceptional items
Profit/(Loss) before tax (III-1V)

Tax expenses

Current tax

Income tax for earlier years
Deferred tax charge/(benefit)

Profit/(Loss) after tax (V-VI)

. Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remcasurement of defined benefit plans
- Income tax relating to these items

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (VII+VIII)

Earnings/(Loss) per equity share (in 3):
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Material accounting policies

Note

32
33

34
35
36
37
38
39

40

53
53
53

46
53

41

2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Mehrotra & Mehrotra
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration

B |
CA Séjay KumanRal cq

Partner

UDIN:

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

5,113.30 4,789.02
78.83 44.40
5,192.13 4,833.42
1,193.66 726.58
= 3.03
943.65 1,005.59
591.99 740.71
271.00 300.15
1,831.88 2,438.20
4,332.18 5,214.26
359.95 (380.84)
359.95 (380.84)
(150.36) (3.08)
(150.36) (3.08)
510.31 (371.76)
571 6.03
(1.44) (1.52)
4.27 4.51
514.58 (373.25)
25.52 (18.89)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Kailash Super Speciality Hospita! Private Limited

—  p——
]

o e — o=

Dr. Ajit Gupta
Director

DW?128653§)

Rajesh Sharma
Director
IN: 02726305

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024

Dr. Ankit Gupta
Director
DIN: 02865321

Rajvir Singh
ChisfFxecutive Officer
PAN: AHDPS4524P

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024



Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited
CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounis are T in lacs, unless staied otherwise)

¥

N

~

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit befoie fux

Adjustments to recoucile profit before tax to cash generated from operating activities

Deplc.‘.haiifm and amortisation expeise

Finance costs

Interest income

Provision for gratuity

Provision for loss of asscis

Liabilitics no longer required written back
Batances written off

Impairment of trade receivables

Other comprehensive (income)/ioss

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for (incr ease)/decrease in operating assets
Inventories

Trade revel
Other fing

Other non-financial assels

Adjustments for inct case/{decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade payahles
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilitics
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
sas Ad (uet of refunds)

¢ om/(used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flo .« from investing activities
Proceeds fran/(payments for) PPE, intangible assets and CWIP
(Tt Vdecicase in Bank Deposits

Inteicst incoime

Net cash flow from investing activiiies (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from/(paymicnts for) borrowings

Payment of lease liabilities

Finance cosis

Net cash infiow from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cach equivaients at the end of the year

Notes to Statemant of cash flows:

(i) Components of cash and bank balances (refer note 14 and15)

Ralances with baniz

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

359.95 (380.84)
271.00 300.15
591.99 740.71
(25.99) (33.76)
2115 19.09

2.36 -
(41.27) (10.31)

22.06 -
40.25 72.81
4.27 451
1,245.77 712.36
(0.00) 3.03
1,111.50 2633
165.62 56.90
(18.81) .80
462.37 (81.65)
(534.73) 953.46
(596.23) 162.32
(24.73) 4.62
1,810.76 1,846.17
(155.62) (54.44)
1,655.14 1,791.73
(15.14) (46.54)
78.16 420.86
25.99 33.76
89.01 408.08
(2,031.63) (1,217.81)
(5.64) (5.64)

(327.19) (1,154.86)
(2,364.47) (2,378.30)

(620.32) (178.49)
698.67 877.16
78.35 698.67

As at
March 31,2024

As at
March 31, 2023

71.37 697.14
0.98 1.53
78.35 698.67

FRN: Ot 177

New Delhi



Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are T in Jacs, unless stated otherwise)

(ii) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars

Borrowings Lease liability Equity share capital Finance cost
For the year ended March 31,2024
Balance as at April 1,2023 6,188.95 18.27 200.00 442,91
Additions during the year 2,500.00 - - -
Repayment during the year (4,531.65) (5.64) - -
Interest & Finance cost Accrued during the year as -
per P&L - - 591.99
Interest Accrued on lease liability and security
deposils - 1.45 - (1.45)
Interest paid during the year - - - (825.64)
Transfer to Equity Component of Compound
financial instrument - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4,157.30 14.08 200.00 207.80
For the year ended March 31,2023
Balance as at April 1, 2022 7,406.74 22.26 200.00 21.90
Additions during the year 3,500.00 - -
Repayment during the year (4,717.79) (5.64) -
Interest & Finance cost Accrued during the year as
per P&L - - 740.71
Interest Accrued on lease liability and security
deposits 1.65 - (1.65)
Interest paid during the year - - (318.06)
Transfer to retained earnings - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 6,188.95 18.27 200.00 442.91

There are no non-cash changes on account of effect of changes in foreign exchange rates and fair values.

(iiii. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Cash Flow Statements” specified under

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv: The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes 1 to 71.

For Mehrotra & Mehrotra
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

T e s ¥ A s =
CA Sanjay Kumar Dr. Ajit Gupta Dr. Aunkit Gupta
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 702865369 DIN: 02865321
UDIN:
Rajesh Sharma Rajvir Singh
Dircctor W Officer
DIN: 02726305 AN: AHDPS4524P

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024
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1. Corporate information

Kailash Super-Speciality Hospital Private Limited (“the Company”) (CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416)
is a private limited company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at 12, Meera Enclave
Near Keshopur, Bus Depot, Outer Ring Road, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110018 and principal place of
business is Rajathan-Delhi NHS, Behror, Rajasthan. The Company was incorporated on October 13,
2020. The main business of the company is to own, manage and run medical facilities in order to provide
comprehensive services and to undertake research including clinical research and development work
required to promote, assist or engage in setting up hospitals.

Application of new and revised Ind ASs

The company has applied all the Ind AS standards notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) to
the extent applicable to the Company.

2. Material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2022 notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 (the act) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on September
28, 2024.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

As these are Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied.
An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 55.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,2,0r3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Material accounting policies are set out below

2.3 Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily by providing healthcare services.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those
products or services. When there is uncertainty on ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is
postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

2.3.1 Healthcare Services

The Healthcare services income include revenue generated from outpatients, which mainly consist of
activities for physical examinations, treatments, surgeries and tests, as well as that generated from
inpatients

The inpatient revenue mainly consists of activities for clinical examinations and treatments, surgeries,
and other fees such as room charges, and nursing care. This stream of revenue includes food & beverage,
accommodation, Surgery, medical/clinical professional services, supply of equipment, investigation and
supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

The patient is obligated to pay for healthcare services at amounts estimated to be receivable based upon
the Company’s standard rates or at rates determined under reimbursement arrangements. The
reimbursement arrangements are generally with third party administrators. The reimbursement is also
made through national, local government programs with reimbursement rates established by statute or
regulation or through a memorandum of understanding.

Revenue is recognised at the transaction price when each performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when inpatient/ outpatients has actually received the service except for few specific services in the
dialysis and oncology specialty where the performance obligation is satisfied over a period of time.

Revenue from health care patients, third party payers and other customers are billed at our standard rates
net of contractual or discretionary allowances, discounts or rebates to reflect the estimated amounts to be
receivable from these payers.

While recognizing the revenue, the Company deducts the pre-determined discount agreed with
government agencies / others from the billed amount. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from
customers and deposited back to the respective statutory authorities, if any.

2.3.2 Dividend and Interest Incom
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Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
233 Contract Assets and Liabilities

Revenue recognised by the Company where services are rendered to the customer and for which invoice
has not been raised (which we refer as unbilled revenue) are classified as contract assets. Amount
collected from the customer and services have not yet been rendered are classified as contract liabilities.

2.3.4 Transaction Price

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for
discounts, estimated disallowances, amounts payable to customer, principal versus agent considerations,
loyalty credits and any other rights and obligations as specified in the contract with the customer.
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers and deposited back to the respective statutory
authorities.

2.3.5 Principal versus agent considerations

The Company is a principal and records revenue on a gross basis when the Company is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the service, has discretion in establish pricing and controls the promised service
before transferring that service to customers.

7.3.6 Trade accounts and other receivables and allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade receivables from healthcare services are recognized at billed amounts collectable under
government reimbursement programs, reimbursement arrangements with third party administrators and
contractual arrangements with corporates including public sector undertakings. The billing on
government reimbursement programs is at pre-determined net realizable rates per treatment that are
established by statute or regulation. Revenues for non-governmental payers with which the Company has
contracts are recognized at the prevailing contract rates. The remaining non-governmental payers are
billed at the Company’s standard rates for services. The allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed
quarterly for their adequacy. The collectability of receivables is reviewed on a regular basis and expected
credit losses are provided for.

Receivables where the expected credit losses are not assessed individually are grouped based on
geographical regions and the impairment is assessed based on macroeconomic indicators.

Write offs are taken on a claim-by-claim basis. Due to the fact that a large portion of its reimbursement is
provided by public health care organizations and private insurers, the Company expects that most of its
accounts receivables will be collectible. A significant change in the Company’s collection experience,
deterioration in the aging of receivables and collection difficulties could require that the Company
increases its estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Any such additional bad debt charges could

materially and adversely affect the Comgpany’s future operating results. When all efforts to collect a

4



receivable have been exhausted, and after appropriate management review, a receivable deemed to be
uncollectible is considered a bad debt and written off.

2.3.7 Revenue from Third Party Administrator (TPA)

Inpatient services rendered to TPA are paid according to a fee-for-service schedule. These rates vary
according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors.
Inpatient services generated through TPA are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which services
are provided at established rates.

The Company determines the transaction price on the TPA contracts based on established billing rates
reduced by contractual adjustments provided to TPAs. Contractual adjustments and discounts are based
on contractual agreements, discount policies and historical experience. Implicit price concessions are
based on historical collection experience. Most of our TPA contracts contain variable consideration.
However, it is unlikely a significant reversal of revenue will occur when the uncertainty is resolved, and
therefore, the Company has included the variable consideration in the estimated transaction price.

2.4 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

2.41 The Company as Lessee

The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of land, buildings, plant and machinery including
office equipment. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed period but may have extension or
termination options. The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease, at its inception.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to —

(a) control the use of an identified asset,
(b) obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and
(©) direct the use of the identified asset.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with periods
covered by an option to extend the lease, where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. This expense is presented within ‘other expenses’ in statement of profit and loss.

Lease Liabilities:

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of t ase liability comprise:




i, fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

ii.  variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date;

i,  the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

iv.  lease payments in optional renewal periods, where exercise of extension options is reasonably
certain, and

v.  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet. The lease liability is subsequently
measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective
interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount o reflect the lease payments made.

Lease Liability payments are classified as cash used in financing activities in Statement of cash flows

The Company remeasure the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever

i) the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate.

ii) the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due
to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used)

iii) a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate.

Right-of-Use Assets:

The Company recognises right-of-use asset at the commencement date of the respective lease. Right-of-
use asset are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Upon initial recognition, cost comprises of:

e the initial lease liability amount,

e initial direct costs incurred when entering into the lease,

(lease) payments before commencement date of the respective lease, and
e an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset,

e less any lease incentives received.

Prepaid lease payments (including the difference between nominal amount of the deposit and the fair
value) are also included in the initial carrying amount of the right of use asset.

They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of
the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related Right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date
of the lease.

The Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the Balance Sheet. The Company applies Ind
AS 36 to determine whether a ROU asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as
described in the impairment of non-financial assets below.




The Company incurs obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which
it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease. The Company has assessed that such restoration costs are negligible and hence 1o provision under
Ind-AS 37 has been recognised.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease
liability and the Right-of- use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “other
expenses” in the statement of profit and loss.

2.3 Foreign currencies

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

2.6 Borrowings and Borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is substantially ready for their intended use.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

2,7 Employee benefits
2.77.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets
(excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit

costs are categorised as follows:




e service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

e net interest expense or income; and

e Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in statement of profit and loss in
the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in
the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

Other Short Term Employee Benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

2.8 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during
the year.

2.8.1 Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘Profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented at net in the Balance Sheet
after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision.

2.8.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.




The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the-Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Temporary differences arising as a result of changes in tax legislation. Accordingly, when additional
temporary differences arise as a result of the introduction of a new tax, and not when an asset or a
liability is first recognised, the deferred tax effect of the additional temporary differences should be
recognised.

2.8.3 Current and Deferred Tax for The Year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
‘tems that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
offect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

2.9 Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings held for use in providing the healthcare and related services, of for administrative
purposes, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold
land is not depreciated.

Expenses in the nature of general repairs and maintenance, are charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Parts of some items of property, plant and equipment may require replacement at regular intervals and
this would enhance the life of the asset such as replacing the interior walls of a building, or to make a
nonrecurring replacement. The company recognises these amounts incurred in the carrying amount of an
item of property, plant & equipment and depreciated over the period which is lower of replacement
period and its useful life. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized in
accordance with the derecognition provisions of Ind AS 16.

Fixtures and medical Equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. All repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as 1o depreciate the cost of assets (other than frechold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. However, the
estimates of useful lives of certain assets are based on technical evaluation and are different from those
specified in Schedule 1L

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflectpfair approximation of
the period over which the assets fly to be used.




Estimated useful lives of the assets ar¢ as follows:

Category of Assets Useful (Life in years)
Buildings (Freehold) 60 years
Buildings (Leasehold) 15 Years
Electrical Installation and Generators 10 Years
Medical Equipment 10 Years
Surgical Instruments 3 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Servers 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal ot when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. )

2.9.1 Capital Work in Progress

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date are recognized as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for
intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress.

Commencement of Depreciation related to property, plant and equipment classified as Capital work in
progress (CWIP)involves determining when the assets are available for their intended use. The criteria
the Company uses to determine whether CWIP are available for their intended use involves subjective
judgments and assumptions about the conditions necessary for the assets to be capable of operating in the
intended manner.

2.10 Intangible Assets
2.10.1 Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

2.10.2 Useful Lives of Intangible Assets

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Category of assets Useful Life (In years)
Software License 3

2.11 Review of Useful Life and Method of Depreciation

Estimated useful lives are periodically reviewed, and when warranted, changes are made to them. The
effect of such change in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

2.12  Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill

The carrying values of property plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are reviewed for
possible impairment whenever events, circumstances or operating results indicate that the carrying



amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

If at the reporting date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment losses previously recognized are reversed such
that the asset is recognized at its recoverable amount but not exceeding written down value which would
have been reported if the impairment losses had not been recognized initially.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories of medical consumables, drugs and stores & spares are valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value. Net Realizable Value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost is determined as follows:

a) ‘Stores and spares’ is valued on First in First Out (FIFO) basis
b) ‘Other consumables’ is valued on First in First Out (FIFO) basis.

Pharmacy is outsourced by the Company to third party, and it does not carry any inventory of medicine.
Vendor is supplying the pharmacy to patients based on the advice of doctors. Supply of medicine is
checked by the Company on daily basis. Payment to the outsourced vendor is made on the basis of drug /
medicine supplied on periodical basis.

2.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, it’s carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.15 Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the ent% or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized




because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured at
the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers.

2.16 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax (including the post tax effect
of exceptional items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year is number of shares
outstanding at the beginning of the year, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares issued during the year
multiplied by a time-weighting factor.

2.17  Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss are reco gnised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

2.17.1 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are
initially measured at their transaction price and subsequently measured at carrying value as of initial
recognition less impairment allowance (if any)

Unbilled revenue represents the value of services rendered to customer undergoing treatment and
rendered as per the service agreements, pending for billing and is reported under other current financial
assets.

Investments in equity instruments are recognized and subsequently measured at fair value. The
Company’s equity investments are not held for trading. In general, changes in the fair value of equity
investments are recognized in the income statement. However, at initial recognition the Company elected,
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, to represent subsequent changes in the fair value of individual
strategic equity investments in other comprehensive income (loss) (“OCT”).

The Company’s investment in debt securities with the objective to achieve both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and initially measured at fair value. Some of these securities
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. These
securities are subsequently measured at FVOCIL Other securities are measured at FVPL.

-




Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities
of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and Cash Equivalents
consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. Restricted cash and bank

balances are classified and disclosed as other bank balances.
Amortised Cost and Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item.

Instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to
investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments
through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to statement of
profit and loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has

e arecent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in statement of profit and loss when
the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of
cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in
statement of profit and loss are included in the ‘Other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at
FVTPL. The expected credit loss approach requires that all impacted financial assets will carry a loss
allowance based on their expected credit losses. Expected credit losses are a probability- weighted
estimate of credit losses over the contractual life of the fi ancial assets.




For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on reasonable and supportable information
including historic loss rates, present developments such as liquidity issues and information about future
economic conditions, to ensure foreseeable changes in the customer-specific or Macroeconomic
environment are considered.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Company’s core operations.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

2.17.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the

substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.




In general, financial liabilities are classified and subsequently measured at amortized cost, with the
exception of contingent considerations resulting from a business combination, non- controlling interests
subject to put provisions as well as derivative financial liabilities

Financial Liabilities Subsequently Measured at Amortised Cost

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs
of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.17.3 Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is -
negative

The change in fair value of derivatives is recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statement f profit and loss.

|
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2.18 Segment Reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Segment Reporting, the Company’s chief operating decision maker
(*CODM™) has been identified as the board of directors.

The company is engaged only in healthcare business and therefore the Company’s CODM (Chief
Operating Decision Maker; which is the Board of Directors of the company) decided to have only one
reportable segment as at the March 31, 2024, in accordance with IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

7.19 Non-Current Asset Held for Sale

The company classifies non-current assets held for sale if their carrying amounts will be principally
recovered through a sale rather than through continuing use of assets and action required to complete
such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to sell will be made or that the
decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified as held for sale only if the management
expects to complete the sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and the fair value less cost
to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

220 Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Company recognises as €xpenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the
balance sheet and transferred to statement of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they become receivable.

2.21 Dividend

A final dividend, including tax thereon, on equity shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval
by the shareholders. An interim dividend, including tax thereon, is recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the board of directors.

2.22  Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current

2.23 Critical accounting Judgements and Key sources of estimation uncertain

Use of Estimates




The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Significant estimates and assumptions reflected in the Company’s
financial statements include, but are not limited to, expected credit loss, impairment of goodwill, useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and leases, realization of deferred tax assets, unrecognized tax
benefits, incremental borrowing rate of right-of-use assets and related lease obligation, the valuation of
the Company’s acquired equity investments. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.

2.23.1 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

2.23.2 Impairment of Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for trade receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to
determine impairment of these trade receivables, based on ton reasonable and supportable information
including historic loss rates, present developments such as liquidity issues and information about future
economic conditions, to ensure foreseeable changes in the customer-specific or macroeconomic
environment are considered.

2.23.3 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures:

The Company conducts impairment reviews of investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint
arrangements whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable or tests for impairment annually. Determining whether an asset is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount, which requires the Company to estimate the value in use
determined using a discounted cash flow approach based upon the cash flow expected to be generated by
the investment. In case that the value in use of the investment is less than its carrying amount, the
difference is at first recorded as an impairment of the carrying amount of the goodwill.

2.23.4 Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans is based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
attrition and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

2.23.5 Litigations

The amount recognised as a provision shall be the management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation arising at the reporting period.

2.23.6 Revenue Recognition

The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to render multiple services to a
customer. The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance
obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to
determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such

deliverables. : /




Judgement is applied in the assessment of principal versus agent considerations with respect to contracts
with customers and doctors which is determined based on the substance of the arrangement.

Judgement is also applied to determine the transaction price of the contract. The transaction price shall
include a fixed amount of customer consideration and components of variable consideration which
constitutes amounts payable to customer, discounts, commissions, disallowances and redemption patterns
of loyalty point by the customers. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of

cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period.
2.23.7 Useful lives of property plant and equipment

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over estimated useful
lives of the assets. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived based on an estimate of an
asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The lives are based on
historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their
life, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful life is reviewed at least annually.

2.23.8 Point of Capitalisation

Management has set in parameters in respect of its medical equipment’s specific to the stability and
reaching the contractual availability goals. The property, plant & equipment shall be capitalised upon
reaching these parameters at which stage the asset is brought to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

In respect of internally generated intangible assets, management has defined the criteria for capitalisation
based on the version released for each feature to be deployed on the digital platform. The point in time at
which the version release contains all the essential features as defined by the management and qualifies to
be a Minimum Viable Product (MVP), the feature is considered eligible for capitalisation.

2.23.9 Impairment of Non - Financial Assets

Determining whether the asset is impaired requires to assess the recoverable amount of the asset or Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) which is compared to the carrying amount of the asset or CGU, as applicable.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds the recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

2.23.10 Leases

Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has the Right-to- use
an underlying asset including optional periods, when an entity is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend (or not to terminate) a lease. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the option when determining the lease term. The
option to extend the lease term is included in the lease term, if it is reasonably certain that the lessee
would exercise the option. The Company reassesses the option when significant events or changes in

circumstances occur that are within the control of the 1essee.{§ %
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Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Nofes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounis are  in lacs, unless staied otherwise)

7 Loans (non-current) As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
8 Other financial assets (non-current) As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
ty deposits 006 0.49 0.64
money dg:-.mlt 2300 1100 21.00
with original maturity for more than 12 months 2.00 8000 500 00
25.06 91.49 521.64
Footnote:
(i) For explanation on the Company's eredit risk management proces
(ii) The margin money deposit made by the company are pledged with Bank against the bank guaranice provided by the Bank to panels for the company's
ﬁllli:dllc‘i‘hcﬁf,
9 Deferred tax assets (net) As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Deferred tax assets (net) (refer note 53) - 2 -
10 Non-current tax assets (net) As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Advance income tax (Net of provision for Income Tax) 45825 301.2 245.23
458.25 301, 245.23
11 Other non-current assets As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Prepaid financial guarantee commission 24.83 28 08 8.84
24.83 28.08 8.84
12 Inventories As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 1,2022
Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value
Consumables & Medicines 11.76 11.76 14,79
11.76 11.76 14.79
Footnotes:
Inveniories are pledged as se rities for borrow en from banks and others (refer note 26).
13 Trade receivables As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Unsecured - at amortised cost
(i) Undisputed tiade receivables — considered good 1,038 84 2,258 53 2,284.87
(if) Undisputed trade receivables — which ha ficant increase in credit risk - - <
(11) Undispuied trade ivables — credit impaired 108 19 - -
(iv) Dispuied trade receivables — considered good - - .
(v) Dispuied trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
(vi) Dispuied trade receivahles — credit imps - - .
Less: Tmpairment loss allowance (151.93) (111.68) (3% 88)
995.10 2,146.85 2,245.99

Footnates:

(i) The Coumg of trade receivable as per Ind AS 109 Financial Instraments’ (refer note 51).
(if) Trader

(ii) For explanation on the Company's

ny has measured expected credit 1o
ities for ha

civables are pledge

n from banks and others (refer note 20 and 26).
ent process, refer note 51,

wlly received in the Company's operdfing cycle.

(iii) Trade receivables arc non-interest bearing and are no




Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited
CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

N S . —
(All amounis are T in facs, uniess sialed otherwise)

(iv) Trade receivables ageing

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 1, 2022

Unsecured - at amartised cost

Undisputed trade receivables — considered good

0-6 months &30 66 1,560.27 1,593.14

6-12 months 148.54 507.21 564.46

1-2 years 59.64 191.05 127.27

2-3 years - <

2-3 years

Maore than 3 years ) ) i

Undisputed trade receivables — cansidered doubiful

1-2 years 30138 - -

2-3 years 73.12 - -

Mare than 3 years 4.69 - 8

Less: Impairment loss allowance (151.93) (111.68) (38 88)
995.10 2,146.85 2,245.99

Trade receivables represent the amount ouistan 2z which are considered as good by the management. The Company believes that the carrying

amount of allowance for expected cre

The trade receivables comprise mainiy of receivahles fraim Governient Underiakings Insurance Cnn.;.m.iec, and Corporate customers.

(vi) Impairment Methodology

The Company has used a practical expedicnt by comip

takes into account historical credit loss experience and is

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

the expected credit loss allowance for receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix
<ted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning 111.68 38.88
Impairment ke nised 40.25 72.81
Timpairment loss utilised = -
Balance at the end of the year 151.93 111.68
14 Cash and cash equivalents As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 77.37 697.14 876.73
Cash on hand 0,98 1.53 0.43
7835 698.67 877.16
15 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 1, 2022
Other bank balances 0.28 0.44 1.30
0.28 0.44 13
16 Other financial assets (current) As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Unhilled revenue 56 65 134.44 52.93
Accrued iniercst on fixed deposits 381 371 19 56
Amount recoverable from Staff 0.26 028 99
Amount receivable from related partie .18 98.76 22030
ceivable from related parties - 968 -
- 0.22 006
69.90 247.09 293.84
17 Other current assets As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 1,2022
Unsecured, considered good
ces and goods 0.77 3.71 12.38
Balance with governiment authorities 051 1.50 -
11.87 11.19 12.82
13.15 16.40 25.20
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Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwise)

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Borrowings (non-current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans:
- from banks

Less: Current maturities
Unsecured - at amortised cost

From related parties (refer note 49)

Footnotes:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 51.

Lease liabilities (non-current)

Lease liabilities (refer note 48)

Footnote:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 51.

Other financial liabilities (non-current)

Provisions (non-current)

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (refer note 46)

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (refer note 53)

Other non-current liabilities

Borrowings (current)

Secured - at amiortised cost

Cash Credit

Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 20)
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Loan from refated parties

Footnotes:

For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 51.

Lease liabilities (current)
Lease liabilities (refer note 48 )

Footnote:
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 51

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
2,483.47 2,808.09 883.83
(37.50) (601.73) (162.72)
. . 4,300.00
2,445.97 2,206.36 5,021.11
As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
9.51 14.08 18.27
9.51 14.08 18.27
As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
41.24 28.60 20.66
41.24 28.60 20.66
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
85.97 234.89 236.45
85.97 234.89 236.45
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
638.89 965.92 522.91
37.50 601.73 162.72
1,034.94 2,414.94 1,700.00
1,711.33 3,982.59 2,385.63
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
4,57 4.19 3.99
4.57 4.19 3.99
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U]
(i)
(iii)

29

30

31

Trade payables As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enferprises and small enierprises 17.76 24.81 -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and sinall
enterprises 579.62 151.46 268.24
(iii) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises — Disputed
Dues - - -
(iv) total ouistanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enferprises — Disputed Dues - - -
597.38 176.27 268.24
Footnotes:
For disclosurcs relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 refer note 45.
For explanation on the Company's liquidity risk management process, refer note 51.
Trade payables ageing
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Less than 1 year 17.76 70.47 -
1-2 years - - -
2-3 years = - -
More than 3 years - - -
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises -
Less than 1 year 566.93 65.26 254.57
1-2 years 3.57 30.31 13.67
2-3 years 9.12 7.74 L)
More than 3 years 2.49 -
597.38 176.27 268.24
Other financial liabilities (current) As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Interest acerued and due on borrowings - - 6.96
Employees related payable 191.37 162.14 66.81
Expenses payable 56.13 66.55 130.76
Capital Creditors 423 19.21 23.06
Amount Payable to related parties
-Interest payable 207.80 44291 14.94
-Others 17.59 85.94 8.72
47712 776.75 251.25
Footnote:
For explanation on the Compaiy's liquidity risk management process, refer note 51.
Other current liabilities As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Advance from custormcrs 1.27 0.62 0.38
Statutory dues payable 60.79 86.17 81.79
62.06 86.79 82.17
Provisions (current) As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Provision for employee benefits
-Provision for gratuity 8.14 5.34 0.21
Provision for loss of assets 2.36 - -
Provision for deduction/ disallowance on hospital receipts 206.73 797.25 62891
217.23 802.59 629.12




Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL.2020PTC371416

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwise)

32 Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of service
Hospital Receipts
-In patient 4,824.24 4,471.16
-Out patient 287.76 310.65
Other operating revenue
-Plasma sale 1.30 7.21
5,113.30 4,789.02

Refer note 2.3 of Material accounting policies section which expl

ain the revenue recognition criteria in respect of revenue from
rendering Healthcare and allied services as prescribed by Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 the company has recognised revenue of 56.65 lacs and ¥
134.44 lacs which is unbilled as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

Category of Customer For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Cash ( With card/Cash/Wallet/RTGS) 318.42 404.06
Credit 4,794.88 4,384.96
5,113.30 4,789.02
33 Other income For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Interest income
-on Income tax refund 11.32 11.78
- on fixed deposits with banks 4.18 11.20
- on security deposits 0.65 -
- on security deposits using EIR method 0.03 0.03
- on loans to related parties 9.82 10.75
Discounts from suppliers 5.94 -
Reversal of penal interest 5.62 -
Liabilities no longer required written back 41.27 10.31
Short & excess - 0.03
Scrap sales - 0.30
78.83 44.40
34 Cost of materials/services purchased For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Purchase of consumables and medicines 938.04 487.47
Medical / ICU services availed 162.00 162.00
Patient diet expense 48.95 48.93
Dental Expense 8.57 -
Lab Testing Expenses 6.32 6.71
Physiotherapy Expenses 8.52 -
Radiology Expenses 21.26 21.47
1,193.66 726.58
35 Changes in inventories of stock in trade For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Opening stock 11.76 14.79
Closing stock (11.76) (11.76)
3.03

A _a
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36

37

38

39

Employee benefit expenses

Salary, wages, bonus and allowances

Employers' contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 46)

Expenses related to post employment defined benefit plans (Refer note 46 )

Staff and labour welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest expenses

- on borrowings

- on lease liabilities (refer note 48)

- on loan from related parties
Finance cost on financial guarantee
Other borrowing costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 5)

Other expenses

ower and fuel
Printing and stationery
Security charges
Rent and hire charges
Insurance expernses
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Telephone & communication expense
Legal and professional expenses (including doctor's fees)
Advertisement, Publicity & Marketing
Remuneration to auditors (refer footnote i)
Claims disallowed
Bank charges
Repairs and maintenance
-Plant and machinery
-Buildings
-Others
Fine and penalty
Cleaning and sanitation
Outsourced expenses
Provision for loss of assets (refer footnote ii)
Impairment loss allowance
Balance Written off
Miscellaneous expenses

.

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

887.45 956.21

28.65 27.10

21.15 19.09

6.40 3.19

943.65 1,005.59

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

321.41 219.14

1.45 1.65

240.29 492.12

28.25 12.17

0.59 15.63

591.99 740.71

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

264.61 291.66

1.75 3.85

4.64 4.64

271.00 300.15

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

134.63 150.58

20.22 17.12

27.31 32.42

2.11 4.54

3.68 7.75

44.14 36.50

0.78 0.51

6.26 6.97

498.34 581.89

8.01 6.40

9.44 4.50

776.88 1,286.60

5.42 1.45

84.58 85.84

6.48 8.86

9.10 2.48

0.09 1.18

115.50 115.30

9.81 8.51
2.36 -

40.25 72.81
22.06 -

4.43 5.99

1,831.88 2,438.20




Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Footnote:
(i) Payment of remuneration to auditors For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- as auditor
» for statutory audit 9.44 4.50
9.44 4.50

(ii) * Provision for loss of PPE is provided based on management estimate after conducting the physical verification of assets on test
basis. The final estimate will be made in subsequent year after making full fledged physical verification,

40 Exceptional items For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Exceptional items

41 Earning per share For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(a). Basic and diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the Company 25.52 (18.89)

(b). Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Profit from continuing operation attributable to the equity share holders 510.31 (377.76)
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating 510.31 (377.76)
basic and diluted earnings per share

(c). Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 2,000,000 2,000,000
basic and diluted earnings per share

The Company has not issued any instrument that is potentially dilutive in the future. Hence, the weighted average number of
shares outstanding at the end of the year for calculation of basic as well as diluted EPS is the same.

! \:R:U\J”zlﬁc
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42 Contingent liabilities and commitments
The company has provided the following guarantecs to it's group companies against the loan taken by the gioup companies from banks and financial
institutions
Entity Name As at 31st March 2024 Movement As at 31st March
2023
Park Medicenters and Institutions private Limited 11,850 00 11,850.00 -
Azgarwal Hospital and Rescarch Services private Limited 2,665 00 2,66500 -
Park Medi world private Limited - (3,500 00) 3,500 00
43 Expenditure on CSR activities
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of average net profits of
the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Palicy in respect of activities specified in Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has not cros .ed the threshold limit required for expenditure on CSR activities as per applicable laws.
44
During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 500 lacs, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of
curtent assets. The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agrecment with the books of account.
45 1In terms of Section 22 of Chapter V of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006), the disclosures of
payments due to any supplier are as follows:
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
The principal amount and the interest due ther unpaid to any
MSME supplier as at the end of each accounting year included in:
- Trade payahles 17.76 24.81 -
- Other financial liabilities _ . _
- Interest dus on above - = -
17.76 24.81 -
The amount of inicrest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED - - -
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting
The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the - - -
appointed day during each acc ounting period.
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment - - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointment day during the year) but
without adding the Tnterest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each - - -
accounting year.
The amount of further inierest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - - -
years, until such date when the inferest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible under section 23
of the MSMED Act, 2006,
46 Employee beuefits
I. Defined contribution plans:

The Compary makes contributions, determined as
and labour welfare fund which are defined contribution plans.

contributions are charged to the siatement of profit and loss as they accrue.

ccified percentage of employce salaries,
The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions, The

in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund

The Company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 an amount of ¥ 28 65 lacs, March 31, 2023: 27.10

laes under defined contribution plans.

Expense under defined contribution plans include:

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
28 65 27.10
L 28.65 27.10

-/
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Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Al amounis are T in lucs, unless siated otherwise)

II. Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity (Unfunded)
The Company operates a post-ginpl

et €

ifexit.

completed service at the time of refire

The picsent value of ohligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projec
e benafit entities itely to build up the final obligaiion.

as giving rise to additional empl and measures each unit sepa

The mast recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit

cfined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entitles an employee to receive half month's salary for each year of
ted unit credit method, which recognise each period of service

obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2024

and March 31, 2023. The prcsent value of the defined benfit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using

the projected unit credit method.

A. Net defined benefit liability/(asset) As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Present vaiue of abligations 4938 33.94 3087
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Total employee benefit liabilities/{assets) 49.38 33.94 20.87
Non-curtent 41.24 2860 20 66
Current 8.14 5.34 0.21
B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
As at March 31, 2024
Defined benefit Fair value of Net defined benefit
ohligation plan assets (asset)/ liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 33.94 - 33.94
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 18.60 - 18 60
Past service cost - - -
Interest cosi{income) 2.55 - 2.55
Expected refurn on plan assets - = z
21.15 - 21.15
Included in OCI
Remcasurements 1os
— Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- financial ,:-nnpiinn: 068 % 068
- denmzmphic a MIONS - - 3
- experience adjusiment (6.39) - (6.39)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - - -
(5.71) - (5.71)
Other
Coniributions paid by the employer - = -
Benefits paid . - -
49.38 - 49.38

Balance at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2023

Defined benefit Fair value of

Net defined benefit

obligation plan assets (asset)/ liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 20.87 - 20.87
Included in profit or loss
Current scrvice cost 17.58 - 17.58
Past service cost } ~ )
Iniciest ¢ income) 1.51 - 1.51
Expecied return on plan assets 2 = -
19.09 - 19.09
Inciuded in OCI
Remi ments gain)
— Actuarial o in) arising fram: =
- financial 2 -'||||5'ﬂ;mi< (040) = -0.40
sumpfions y ° )
- experience ,]_C]Jlniumul (5,63) - -563
Return on plan assets excluding iniers B B )
-6.03 - -6.03
Other
Contribution d by the emplayer - - -
Benefits paid - - -
33.94 - 33.94

Balauce at the end of the year

FRN: 000226C
<N\ New Delhi
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(All amounts are T in lacs, unless staled otherwise

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net inferest cost

Exjpecied return on plan asscts

C. Actuarial assumpiions

The principal assumptions are the discount rafe and salary growth raie. The discount rate is b

the accounting date with a term that maiches that of liabilities. Salary increa

factors on long term basis, Valuation assum)

rate takes into account of inflation,
s which have been selected by the Company.

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

18 60 17.58

2.55 1.51

ased upon the market yields available on government honds at
seniority, promotion and other relevant

March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 1, 2022
Discount rate 25% 7.50% 7.31%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% s % 5.00%
Expected rate of atirition 5.00% 5.00%
JAIM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14

fortality

D. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonahly possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumj

the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

“ions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1.00% movement) (4.25) (3.02) 365
Future salary growth (1.00% maovement) 5.17 3.70 (3.11)
Attrition rate (1.00% movement) 0.13 (0 00) (0.19)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full disiribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the

sensiiivity of the assumptions shown.

Sensitivities due to mortality is not material and hence impact of change is not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not

applicable being a lump sum benefit on refirement,

Dhcriplinn of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based on certain as

umptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the Company is exposed to various risks as follows:

a). Salary increase: Actual salary increases will increase plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase

the liahility.

b). Investment risks If plan is funded then a
valuation daie can impact the liability.

¢). Discount rate: Reduction in discount rale in subs

d). Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disab

1

¢). Withdrawals: Actual withdra
impact the plan’s liability.

5 proving higher or lower than

E. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Duration of defined beuefit obligation

Less than 1 year
Between 2-5 ye

Aore than S year
Total

S
S

quent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

-ts lishilities mismalch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last

ty cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liahilities.

med withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
8.14 5.34
2.58 1.15
38 66 27.45
49.38 33.94

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan ohligation at March 31, 2024 is 21 years (March 31, 2023: 23 years).

gi

)



“payunr] ‘1 [endsoy Ayjeroadg sadng ysepresy yo (910

{(TdHSS) ‘P ad Tendsoy Aeoadg 1adng yse(iey Aq paumo wesefey Jomag ‘gHN U0 payeoo] eare dn-jymq 13 "bs 000°0€"T WM S210T T~

‘siseq [enuue uo paptaoxd aq 0} sjuduIe

PO 2}eATI] SUOTMISU] 79 1VUOIPIN Hed
(Auedwio) Surp[oH oyeuIn(]) PANUI JJLALI] PIOM IPIIN Hed
-:99jueIENL) MNeIedio)

“poynur aeAnq [endsoy Ayeioads - Jadng yse[res] Jo S)5Se paXY A[qRAOL 79 SJOSSE JUALIND ¢ §195SR POXIJ S[qEAOUI]

Jsu1 PaNPaYos Pue 152123l 103 sanbayo Ayumoas sy, “AIowy A Jo JuourAeday 103 junoure [ediound pue reok

:SMO]J0} SE S1YuEg DIDT 0) SU¥0] 10} UAAIZ ANINNS (1)

(1D pL'8 S 6T-TRIN U0 52 AN rdng oy I1q
('s1D 67°981 "SY 61-TeJN UO S¥ AN mdno ufy 3
99jurIENd [RUOSIIJ

payun areatid pprom 1PN dred
29jueaseng sjeaodio)

1 10§ Junoure [ediouud pampayds pue JsAIAUL 10} sonbayo ALNo3g 9

panur] opeanid plIoM IPIJA SjIed JO SIOSSE JUILIMD PUE S)ASSE PIXY S]qRAOIA] XNy 29 JUas91d 91 [[e WO oFreyd nsseJ-Led puodd§ ¢
‘poyur] ‘1ag [endsoH Aeroads sadng yseqres] o o 23pard amws %001 ¢

4d19921 Joyo Aue ‘safreyo Sunjred ‘SoBIeyo BOIE UOWIWIOD “spa0001d 90oURINSUL ‘SMOJJ S Iy Furpnjour)

SMOJJ YS0/9]qrAI021 31} JO UonroaRodAy jo Aem £q o3reyo nssed tred 3s1y
<1 ou jurod w pajess Arodoid yxm payrun A [endsop] Ayeioadg 1odng Yse[Ie3] JO SJOSSE JUDLINO PUR SJASSE PIXI) 1Ty pu juosaxd o [[e uo 93rey) NSseq g ST
0 eore pue] Suiaey [exdsor] YSe[Iey JO SUIPTNG % Pur AU Y} UO oFreyo nssed-1red Is1]

— o

:SMO[]0} SE S POHIWII] 2JUEUI SIXY 0} SUEO] 10} UIALS A}LINDG (1))

1$930U)00 ]
YL90F' 1 T0VLL'E 9€TTI'E SBuIMo1I0g [F10L
- > 68'8€9 (117) 210007 13§y VN SIUOIN 1 %57 6="%5L 7+ 0424[ 00°005°1 WPAID yseD Jueg SIXV
16TTS 6596 g (A1) 230m005 J39y YN SPUON T1 %SL'8=%SL v+ 04| 00°000°T Wpa1) YseD ueg SIXY
[INEXRE T 50Y
JITENTSY
£3°€88 60'808°C LV €8Y'T
: - LY E8YT (1) 21013003 12124 [YZ0T/10/1€ s1eak 01 ST 6=2%5L T+ 002 00°005°T UEOT WAL Sueg SIXY
- 68°€90°C (1) a10w003 19JoY sjusuI[eISUL (%b's awex odan)| 00°€62°T NvVOTI10101
- Apypuow fenba 6 %S1'8=9%5L T+ 049 Uro WA,
- 0T HbL (1) 210W00J 12§ suowRIsul %S arex odan){ 0088 NVOTI0IDI
- Ajpuow [enba 6g %G1 8=2%GL T+ 0doy uRO WD,
(1) 210W005 1239y
(umuue 1ad 946y, Apuarmo) YTOW
uug SIXy 1aA-1 Surjreasid oy
UMIOJRIOW YUOL | PAUI| PUR S}9S31 [eNUUE (ILM Appuowr
£8'£88 = . 120T/21/1€ 6 Surpnjour wax 9| ojqeArd ed 056/ 6  18212U] JO AYRY| 00°000° UpO UL Y] @0uRUL] SIXY
A1 79 1030UJ00J 19J0.1) HUE( WOI) SUEO] WLIY) PIINIIG
JUILIND-UON
7207 ‘1 1dy €207 ‘1€ WAL | $70T ‘T€ YR (sypuow u) Wiy uonduEg
1€ SE SUIPUE)SING JuUNnowWy psodop AJundeg | P MEIS Al uInud Y, ey 11U JUR0T] JO Junowy urog JuIBN JOpUI]

SSUIMO0.10q JUILIND PUE JUILINI-UOU JO A}LINDIS JO 2INJEU pUE JudwAedaa ‘SuoIIpuod 3 SWIdY, Ly

(9SIMIDUIO PAIEIS SSIUN ‘SOB] UL 2 JIB SHUNOUIE )

$70T “1€ YIIEJA PIPUD 18IK I} 10} SHUIWDIE)S [EIOURUY ) 03 SIHON

9IF1LEDLIOTOTTA0TISSN NID
payuny AeALLy [endsol Apjeadg 1adng yseey



“SONLIJEU JUDLMD JO SAISN[OUL A SHUELQ WO SIPO] ULI} PAINOIF (A)

Py JeALL] SUODMINSU] 2 IJUSIIPIN HTed
-(Auedwo) SWIP[OY SILWD]()) PANWI AL PHOMIDIN HIEd
-:Jo JjuBIBND u«x._c.u.-co

(1030011Q) TAND IOV I
(1030011 ) wdnp wly 10
-1J0 JAUEIEND) [EUOSId]

‘amyng pue juasaxd ypoq Aurduwioo I JO $)a8SE A qUAOUL 2Imus a1 uo uonroaodAy Jo Aem Aq py] oURUL] SIXY M ofreyo nssed tred )57 (q)
ponwry aeAL [EndsoH Ayeioads 1odng yserey] Aq paumo ueyseley 101yag ‘g-HN U0 PajRd0] Eale dn ppmnq 33 ‘bs 000°0€°T JO woIR purR| Fuiaey [endsoH yse[res] jo Surp[ing puw pur| pjoyasea] SIHUD U0 N JO Auam Aq Py 9oURUL SIXY Y3im 9Sreyd nssed tred )5y (2)

B E U0

amny pue yuasa1d yroq Auedwiod 9y} JO SIOSSE JUALINO 21U 31 U0 uonroapodAy jo Aem Aq dourul] SIXY G of ey nssed wed 5114 (2
B SR

:5MO]]0} SE S1 jurg SIXY 03 puwil] DD 10} uoAId Kjndag (A1)
“(UONPZIEIIR][0D-5S010) PANWIIT AEAUJ SINAIDS YOIRIFIY pue [endsoy [emed3y

(Kuedwo)) SUIP|OH dyEwIm|()) PANWI] eAL] PHOMIPIN HEd
o JIJUBIEND) Jjri0dI0)

-Aueduior) dnoxny poyiury 9JeALLJ SUOHMINSU] 7 JUSIIPIN SHed § JO Suipping 29 puer] uo 33reyo nssed-wred 151y
10L10¢€ ueypseley ‘Jomyag ‘Auojo) yedefe1d gy [N J& PRIe00] paytuil] SRALL] endsoy Aneroads - 1adng ysefresy Jo Furpping 29 PuB uo dFILYD AISNIOX
STRIE([0D

“armyng pue Juasoid yroq Auodwiods oy Jo y10q/Auoduiod YA PUE SIISSE JUSLINO JINUI I UO 23e10A0] QAISN[OXT]
EIS TN |
:SMO[]O} SE S1dukg SIXY 03 Nwi| DD 7 SULO] 10} uaAIg Ayandeg (1)

(9SIMIOYIO PTRIS SSOUN ‘SOB| UL 2 I SHUNOUIE )

$T0T *T€ YIIEIA PAPUD JBIA 31} 10} SHUDUWIIFE)S Je1duERUY Y} 0) SAION
9I¥ILEDLA0TOTIAOT TSN NID

pojwy deAld [¥idsoy ANeads 1adng ysejied]

o~



Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are Z in lacs, unless stated otherwise)

48 Leases
A. Leases as a lessee

1 Non-exempted leases

(i) Movement in lease liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Opening balance 18.27 22.26
Additions on account of new lease contracts enter ed info during the year -
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.45 1.65
Payment of lease liabilities* (5.64) (5.64)

Modifications in lease liabilities due to change in lease term -

*Payment of lease liabilities includes payment of principal of lease liabilities amounting of X 4.19 lacs (previous year: X 3.99 lacs ) and interest of
lease liabilities amounting of T 1.45 lacs (previous year: ¥ 1.65 lacs).

(i) Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 1, 2022
Current lease liabilities 4.57 4.19 3.99
Non-current lease liabilities 9.51 14.08 18.27
14.08 18.27 22.26

(iii) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at year end on undiscounted basis are as follows:

As at March 31, 2024

Lease payments Finance charges Net present value
Commitments for lease payments in relation to non-exempted leascs are
payable as follows:
- not later than one year 5.64 1.07 4.57
- later than one year and not later than five years 1034 0.83 9.51
- later than five years - z -
15.98 1.90 14.08
As at March 31, 2023
Lease payments Finance charges Net present value
Commitments for lease payments in relation to non-exempted leases are
payable as follows:
- not later than one year 5.64 1.45 4.19
- later than one year and not laier than five years 15.98 1.90 14.08
- later than five years = s S
21.62 3.35 18.27
As at April 1, 2022
Lease payments Finance charges Net present value
Comimitments for lease paymenis in relation to non-cxempted leases are
payable as follows:
- not later than one ycar 5.64 1.65 3.9¢
- later than one year and not later than five years 21.62 3.35 18.2°
- later than five ycars 5
27.26 5.00 22.2
(iv) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss For the year ended  For the year endec
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Depreciation on right-of-use asscts 4.64 4.6
Finance costs on lease liabilities 1.45 1.6

6.09 6.2




Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(All amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise)

(v) Amount recognised in statement of cash flows For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilitics 5.64 5.64
5.64 5.64

(vi) For reconciliation of carrying amount of right-of-use asseis and details thereof refer note 5.

2. Exempted leases
The Company has recognised I 2.11 lacs as rent expenses during the year (previous year X 4.54 lacs) which pertains to short term lease/ low value
asset which was not recognised as part of right of use asset.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amonnis are T in Juacs, unless suited oiherwise)

49 Related party disclosures

The related parties as per teras of Ind AS 24 "Related Party Discle

below:

pe

A. List of related parfies where control exisis and/or with whom transaciions have taken place

ified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companie:

s (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are disclosed

Holding Company (Group A)

orld Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries (Group B)

ions Private Limited

Private Lin

iited

licity Tndia Private Limited

al Centre Private Limited

Park Imperial Medi World Pri Limited

Park Medicity World Private I d

Park Elite Medi World Private Limited

Park Medicity (North) Private Limited

Blue Heaven Healthcare Private Limited

Umkal Healthears Private Limited

Park Medicity (NCR) Private Limited

vy of Fellow Subsidiaries

RS Healthcare Limite

DMR Haospitals Private Limit

Park Medicity (Haryana) Private Limited

Ratnagiri Innovations Private Limited

Narsingh Hospital & Heart Institute Private Limited

Significant Influence (Greup C)

s Private Limited

\i Memorial Health Society

Amar Medica! and R h Cenire

Sunil Hosnital & Nursing Home

Ajit Gupta HUF

Healplus Labs Private Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP) (Group D)

Dr. Ajit Gupta (Direcion

Dr. Ankit Gupla (Directon)

Mr. Rajvir Singh (CEQ) (from 1-1-23)

Salpal Singh Gambhir _ (CEO) (Upio 30-6 23)

B. Transactions with related parties dur ing the year are as following: -

Name of Relaied Party

Nature of Relationship

For the year ended
March 31,202

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Interest expenses

Purk Medi Warld Pri
Blue Heaven Health

ealtheare Pri

Park Medi world Private Limi
Park Medicity (Haryana) Private Limite

Loan repayment

Park Mediceniers and Tnsi s Private Lim
Vendor payment on their behalf

Park Medicity (North) Private Limiied
Umikal He \are Private Timited

Statutory dues paid on our behall
Park Madi world Private Limited

Exj

Ay
Al

senses Paid on our behalf
wal Re

seh Cenire

Inierest income
Park Mzdi world Private Limited

Inierest paid

Inter Corporate Dep:
Puark Medi Waild Pri

Inter Corporate Deposit received back
Puark Medi World Private Limited

Vendor payment on their behalf
ici i

& Tamited

Inter Corporate Deposit taken

are Private Limited

Blue He 2
altheare Private

Umikal

Inter Corporaie Deposit repaid
wware Pri Timited

Private Limiied

Fellow Subsidiary 9.40
Suhsidiary of Fellow Subsidiaries 6.A(
Haoldi Ty 8
Fellow Subsidiary 22108
Fellow Subsidiary 324
Feltow Subsidiary -
Helding
Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiaries 75.00
Feilow Subsidiary 101.99
Fellow subsidiary 0.17
' 1.17
52.81
Fellow Subsidiary -
ety 0582
6.60
pany 0.58
ny 10¢.26
0.17
1.17

2,500 00

’_’,l'n 0 .00
1100

2,500 an

11332
16.69
3.73
375.07

149.72

2,143.00

2.050.00
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Notes to the financial staiements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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C. Balance outstanding with or from related parties as at:

Nature of Relationship As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1,2022

Name of Related Party

Current Account receivable

Park Medi world Private Li: Sompany R.06 . -
ana) Pri ary of Fellow Subsidiaries - - 16.59
beidiary

theare Pri

nial and Re e Limited

Purk Medicity (Haryana) Private Limited 75.00 - -
Current Account Payable
ark Medi K is Private Li 1.02 02 -
Amar Me 11.90 11.90 8.72
al ar c - 0.13
orld Private Lim Fellow Subsidiar 1.50 1.50
) idiary of Feliow Subsidiaries 2.58
g company - 4636 9285
E beidiary 4.67 5.84 -
Park Medicity Waorld Pr > sidiary 1.50 -
Narsingh Hospital & Heart Inst ary of Fellow Subsidiaries - 15.69 -
Corporate gnaraniee given
Purk Medi world Private Limited Holding company - - 2,500 00

Interest payable (Net of TDS)

o Pii viter Fellow subsidiary 337.56 14.94
Haldi y - 3.36 -
Fellow diary 744 _ .
Subsid of Fellow Subsidiaries 5.94 - =
Fellow subsidiary - 3.62 125.45
Fellow subsidic 292
Interest Receivahle
Park Medi world Private Lirited Qa8
Trade payables
Park Medicity Haryana Private Limited Fellow subsidiary - 84.31 5
Blue H 1 Healtheare Private Lim Fellow subsidiary 198,94 337.56
Medical services
Purk Medicity Tndia Private Limited Fellow subsidiary . . 270.00
Remuneraiion payable(Professional fees)
Mr. Satpal Singh gambhir Significant influence - 2 =
Inter Corporate Deposit Payable
Fellow subsidiary - 101.99 -
Fellow idiary 932,50 2,414.94 -
Holding company . 93.94
Park Medi world Private Limited
Remuneration payahle
Mr. Rajvir Singh KMP 3.74 3.19

D. Compensaii
The compensation of directors

n of Key Managerial Personnel

and ather membe

Name of KMP

Nature of Compensation

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

E. Terms and Conditions
The transaction

with relaie

are made on terms ¢

neralion

smeration

wat prevail inarm’s length transactions and are at market value.

4636
61.00

107.36
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Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are ¥ in lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 on 'Operating segments'
Segment information is presented in respect of the company’s key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the company’s management
and internal reporting structure.

Operating Segments

The board of directors have been identified as the Chief Oper ating Decision Maker (CODM)), since they are responsible for all major decision w.r.t. the
preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint venture, merger and acquisition, and expansion of
any facility. The company is engaged only in Healthcare business and therefore the Company’s CODM (Chief Operating Decision Maker; which is the
Board of Directors of the company) decided to have only one reportable segment as at the March 31, 2024, in accordance with IND AS 108 “Operating
Segments”. Accordingly, there is only one Reportable Segment for the Company which is "Healthcare Services", hence no specific disclosures have
been made.

Entity wide disclosures

Information about products and services
Company deals in one business namely "Healthcare Services”. Therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

Information about geographical areas
Company operates under single geographic location, there are no separate reportable geographical segments.

Information about major customers (from external customers) :
The revenue from customers includes revenue of Rs. 4,608.21 lacs (P.Y. Rs. 4,234.18 lacs) which represents revenue of more than 1 % of the total
revenue of the company from two & three customers respectively.

< 246
{ QUULES
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Nofes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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51 Fair value measurement and financial instruments

a). Financial instruments — by category and fair values hierarchy

The fallowing table shows the carrying amounts and Lair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair vaive hierarchy.

— - Carrying value
a1 FVTPL FVIOCI Amortised cost Total
Financial assets
Non-current
Other financial assefs 25.06 2506
Current
Trad ivables 995.10 995.10
Casl ash equivalents 78 35 78.35
Other bank balances 028 028
Other financial assets 69.90 69.90
Total - - 1,168.69 1,168.69
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Boriowii 2,445.97 2,445.97
Lease li 9.51 9.51
Current
Borrowings 1,71133 1,711.33
Lea-= liahilities 4.57 4.57
Trade payables 597.38 597.38
Other financial liabilities 477.12 477.12
Total - - 5,245.88 5,245.88
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total
Financial assets
Non-current
Other financial assets 91.49 91.49
Current
Investmients -
Trade receivahles 2,146 8S 2,146 85
Cash and cash el,guivalcuk 698 67 698 67
Other bank halanc 0.44 0.44
Other financial assets 247.09 247.09
Total - - 3,184.54 3,184.54
Financial liahilities
Non-current
Borrowings 2,206 36 2,206 36
L=asz liabilities 14 08 14.08
Current
Borowings 3,982.59 3,0%2.59
Lease libifitics 4.19 4.19
Trade pu;m'n‘e: 176.28 176.28
Other financial liabilities 776.75 776.75
Total - - 7,160.25 7,160.25
As at April 1, 2022 ___Carrying value __
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total
Financial assets
Non-current =
Other financial assets 521.64 521.64
Current
Investinenis -
Trade receivables 2,245.99 2,245.99
Cash and cash equivalents 877.16 877.16
Other bank balances 1.30 1.30
Other financial assets 293.84 293.84
Total E . 3,039.93 3,939.93
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borowings 502111 5021.11
Lease liabilities 18.27 18.27
Baiowings 2,385 63 2,385 63
Lease liabilities 3.99 3.99
Trade payables 268.24 26824
Other financial labilities 251.25 251.25
Total - - 7,948.49 7,948.49

FRN: 02280
Mew Deit
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(Al amounis gre T in lucs, upiess stuied atherwise)

Continued from previous page
Py & fRied Jrom provions frige

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

B

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments tha
a2 and rely as litile as possible on entity specific es

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not b
included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with ge

{ransactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments.

h and cash eguivalents and other financial as

The carrying amounts of trade recel
value of financial assets and financ

Valuation processes
The Manag

b). Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk
” Li(g:)idity risk
« Market risk

(i). Credit risk
Credit risk is a risk of financial loss to the Company ar
equivalents. The Trade Re

g from

transactions are eamed in cash or ¢
Undertakings, Staie/Central and International Govern
ises with high credit ratings. Accordingly, the Co
customer, the Company uscs an internal credit scoring ¢

attributed to customers are reviewed annually. The oufstas with the debiors is reviewed periodically.

The maximum exposure to credit Tisks is igpiese nted by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:

ables comprise mainly of receivables from Tnsurance Com
< The Tnsurance Companies aré Tequired to maintain minimum reserv
pany’s exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables is considere
1 to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring

1 on ohservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The fair value of financial
y accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from obs

s ot traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of ohservable market
imates. Ifall significant inputs required to fair value an instrument arc observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

assets and liabilities
ervable current market

and liahililies, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term nature. Fair
ial liahilities is similar to the carrying value as there is 1o significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

sment performs the valuations of financial assets and liahilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 3 fair vaiues.

iparty failure to repay according to contractual terms or obligations. Majority of the Company’s
panies, Corporale customers, Public Sector
¢ levels and the Corporate Customers are
d low. Before accepling any new credit

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 1, 2022
Trade receivables 995.10 2,146.85 2,245.99
Cash anc h equival 78.35 69867 877.16
Bark balances other than cash and cash equivalents 0.28 0.44 1.30
Other financial assets 94.96 33858 815.48

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally

fiom the Company’s receivables from customers.

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from custome

risks on an ongoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with

ratings assigned by domestic eredit raling agencies.

The maximum

approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants ¢

On adontion of Ind AS 109, the Compariy uses expec ted credit loss model to ¢
f > pany F
senfs its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The mana

re 3
=d on the business environment in which the Company ope

allowance, the Company es
defauit (credit impaired) when counter party
determing an impairment allowance for loss on rec civables.

mates amounts b

Josure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from (rade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are de
customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitor the economic environment in which it operates and the Company manag

and loans. The Campany maintains a defined credit policy and monitors the exposures to these credit
scheduled commercial banks with high credit

rived from revenue eamed from
es its Credit risk through credit
redit terms in the normal course of business

55 the impairment loss or gain. The Company establighes an allowance for impairment that
ent uses a simplified approach (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment loss
tes, and management considers that the trade receivables are in
4ils to make paymenis as per terms of sale/service agrecments. However the Company hased upon historical experience

When a trade receivable is credit impaired, it is writien off against trade receivables and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Suhsequent recoveries

of amounts previously writien off are credited to the income statemant,

The gr

reatised with

rying amount of tra

in the credit period.
s that the un

collectible in full, b

saired amounts tha

The Company belicve

d on historical payment behaviour.

. receivables is T 1,147.02 lacs (March 31, 2023: ¥ 2,258.53 lacs and April 1, 2022: T 2,284.87 lacs). Trade receivables are generally

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receiva
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1,2022
Not due - - -
735.50 1,062.99 949.91
99.36 497.29 643.23
5505 33803 46236
ay 93.49 152.77 102.11
361-450 days 28.70 62.60 104.57
450-540 days 26.73 6058 22.70
More than 540 days 108.19 84.27 -
Total o 1,147.02 2,284.87
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounis are T in lacs, unless stated oiherwise)

(ii).

@n).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encour
another financial 2sset. The Company’s
fallen due, under both narmal and stres

The Company believes that its liguidity
peralions will enable it to me

fuiure internally gencialed

Company

The Company's lic
- Day to Day fun

- Maintaining rolling

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining coniractual ma
g

poroach to managing i

funds from o
ing sufficient cas
ularly monitor its liquidity req

ympanies to meet its liquidity requirements in the she

ions, without incurring unacceptable los

ko

ity in meeting the abligations as
dity is to ensure, as far as possib

el | AN 4
Tt ana ong tenm.

=ment, includes the following:
ients can be met.

turities of financial liabilities at the reporting date:

<ociated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
le, that it will have sulficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are
s or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

sosition of T 78.35 lacs as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: % 698 67 lacs and April 1, 2022: ¥ 877.16 lacs) and the anticipated
ot its future known ohligations in the ordinary course of business.

h and marketable securities and the availability of funding {hrough an adequate amount of credit facilities
uirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding from

Canryii Contractual cash flows
As at March 31, 2024 n ~ Between one to More than
amount Less than one year o Total
five years five years
Borrowings 4,157.30 1,711.33 1,324.19 1,121.78 4,157.30
abilities 14.08 4.57 9.51 - 14.08
Trade puyables 597.38 597.38 - - 597.38
Other financial liahilities 477.12 477.12 - - 477.12
Total 5,245.88 2,790.40 1,333.70 1,121.78 5,245.88
) Caerying Contractual cash flows
As at March 31,2023 amount Less than one year Between one fo Myreihaa Total
five years five years
Boitowings 6,188.95 3,982.59 2,206.36 - 6,188.95
Lease liahitities 18.27 4.19 14.08 - 18.27
Trade payables 176.28 176.28 - - 176.28
Other financial liahilities 776.75 776.75 - - 776.75
Total 7,160.25 4,939.80 2,220.44 - 7,160.25
Carrying Contractual cash flows
As at April 1,2022 ‘ ) Between one to More than
amount Less than one year i Total
five years five years
Borrowings 7,406.74 2,385.63 5,021.11 - 7,406.74
Lease liahilities 22.26 3.99 18.27 - 22.26
Trade payables 26824 26824 - - 26824
Other financial liabilities 251.25 251.25 - - 251.25
Total 7,948.49 2,909.11 5,039.38 - 7,948.49

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cas
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, the Company

cnt is to mai

risk Ml ge

a. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrum
s with variable rates, which expose the Company to ca

arises from long-

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company’s interest rate risk ai
rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s bor rowing to interest rate changes

Variable-rate instruments

Axis Finance Ltd
ICICI Bark -1
ICICI Bank - 1T
AXIS Bank-I
Total

and control market risk exposur

term borrowing

s majorly from the term 1oans from ba

h flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of chang
nly has exposure to two type of market risk
es within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

s

anks carrying floating rate of interest. These obligations exposes
as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

s in market prices. Market risk comprises three ty
namely: currency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market

rpes of risk: interest

ent will fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk
sh flow interest rate risk.

the Company to cash flow interest

As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 1,2022
- - 883.83
- 744.20 -
. 2,063.89 s
2,483.47 - -
2,483 2,808 884

Mrc
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(Al amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwisé)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
The sensitivity anajvses below have been determined bas=d on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period.

For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when reparting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in inierest rates.

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
50 hps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease

ICICI Bank - I

For the year ended March 31, 2024 - ” s -

For the year ended March 31, 2023 (3.72) 3.92 (2.78) 2.78
ICICI Bank - II

For the year ended March 31,2024 - - . .

For the year ended March 31,2023 (10.32) 10.32 (7.72) 772
AXIS Bank-I

For the year ended March 31, 2024 (12.42) 12.42 (9.29) 9.29

For the year ended March 31, 2023 - - - -

.. Continued on next page
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L Coniinucd

fromt provious b
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b. Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fufure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevaiting foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows to the extent of earnings and
expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the

Company's operaling, investing and financing activities,

Exposure to foreign currency risk
The company operates in India only and there is no inflow or outflow of any foreign currency denominated transactions during the FY 2022-23 and 2023-24.
Accordingly the company is not exposed to the foreign currency risk

52 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital ma al includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves atii ibutahle to the equity

holders of the Corpany.

geinent, ¢

ment assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efMcient overall financing structure, The Company manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in coonomic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shar cholders, raisc new debt or issue new sharcs.

The Company monitors capital on th fthe debi to capital ratio, which is calculated as inierest-bearing debis divided by tofal capital (equity attributable

to owners of the parent plus iniercst-bearing debis).

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Borrowiiigs 4,157.30 6,188 95 7,406.74
Less: Cash and bank batances 78.63 699.11 878.46
Adjusted net debt (A) 4,078.67 5,489.84 6,528.28
Total equity (B) 324.92 (214.66) 127.18
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 1255% NA 5133%

SRR b ag T Fe e
S‘nm,;, inieniiondity n:ﬁ blank...

%\ FRN:000226C
5 \_New Delhi
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53 Income taxes

A. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss For the year ended  For the ycar ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income tax expense
Curren - -
Incomie tax for earlier years - -
Deferred tax expense
Change in recognised temporary differences (150.36) (3.08)
(150.36) (3.08)

B. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income For the year ended March 31, 2024

Before Tax (expense)/ Net
tax income of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remecasurements of defined benefit obligations 5,71 1.44 427
5.71 1.44 4.27

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Before Tax (expense)/ Net
tax income of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligations 6.03 1.52 4.51
6.03 1.52 4.51

For the year ended

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rate Amount Rate Amount

Profit before tax from continuing operations 25.17% 359.95 2517% (380.84)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 90.59 (95.85)
Tax effect of:
Temporary differences (150.36) (3.08)
Other adjustiments (90.59) 95.85

(150.36) (3.08)

D. Movement in deferred tax balances As at Recognised Recognised As at
March 31, 2023 in P&L in OCI March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets/liabilities
Property, plant & equipment (289.69) 130.51 - (159.18)
Intangible assat 0.40 0.17 - 0.57
Trade receivabl 2811 10.13 - 38.24
Right of use asset (4.48) 1.17 - (3.31)
Other non-curtent assets (7.07) 0.82 - (6.25)
Lezass liahility 4.60 (1.05) - 354
Other equity 7.91 (1.61) - 6.29
Provision 8.54 592 (1.44) 13.02
Other financial liahifities 16.79 432 - 21,11
Deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) (net) (234.89) 150.36 (1.44) (85.97)
Movement in deferred tax balances As at Recognised Recognised As at
April 1, 2022 in P&L in OCI March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets/liabilities
Property, plant & equipment (251.51) (38.18) - (289.69)
Intangible asset (0.23) 0.63 - 0.40
Right of use assat (5.64) 1.17 - (4.48)
Other non-curient assets (2.22) 4.84) - (7.07)
Trade receviables 9.78 18.32 - 28.11
Lease liability 5.60 (1.01) - 4.60
Other equity 2,52 5.39 - 7:91
Provision 5.25 4.81 (1.52) 8.54
Other financial Habilities - 16.79 - 16.79
Deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) (net) (236.45) 3.08 (1.52) (234.89)

E. Tax losses carried forward

Deferred tax assels has not recognised on unused tax

losses
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(iv)
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(i)

First time adoption of Ind AS

The Company has prepared its first Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2024. For periods up to and
including the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Indian GAAP, including accounting standards
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) ("previous GAAP"). The effective date for Company’s Ind AS Opening
Balance Sheet is April 1, 2022 (the date of transition to Ind AS).

The accounting policics set out in Nofe 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, the comparative
information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS Balance Sheet at April 1,
2022 (the Company’s date of transition). Ac cording to Ind AS 101, the first Ind AS Financial Statements must use recognition and measurement principles
that are based on standards and interpretations that are effective at March 31, 2024, the date of first-time preparation of Financial Statements according to
Ind AS. These accounting principles and measurement principles must be applied retrospectively to the date of transition to Ind AS and for all periods
presented within the first Ind AS Financial Statemcnis.

Any resulting differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities according to Ind AS 101 as of April 1, 2022 compared with those presented in
the Indian GAAP Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2022, were recognized in equity under retained eamings (or, if appropriate, another category of equity)
within the Ind AS Balance Sheet.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is
set out in the following tables and notes:

Exceptions and exemptions availed

In the Ind AS Opening Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2022, the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities from the Indian GAAP as at 31 March 2022 are
generally recognized and measured according to Ind AS in effect as on March 31, 2024. For cerain individual cases, however, Ind AS 101 provides for
mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions to the general principles of retrospective application of Ind AS. The Company has used the following
exceptions and excmiptions in prepar ing its Ind AS Opening Balance Sheet:

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

An eniity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance
with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.
Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2022 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made
estimates for Impairment of financial asscts based on expected credit loss model in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not

required under previous GAAP.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requircs the company to asscss classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition.
Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted on amortised cost basis on fact and circumstances existing as at the date of
transition, if retrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition
Measurement of financial assets has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

Derccognition of financial assets and liabilities
As per Ind AS 101 an entity should apply derecognition requiremenis in Ind AS 109 prospectively for transaction occurring on or after the date of transition
to Ind AS.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied exception related to impairment of financial assets given in Ind AS 101. Tt has used reasonable and supportable information tha
is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial assets were initially recognised and compared that to the credi
risk at April 1, 2022.

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to conlinue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financiz
statenients as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition, Thi
exemplion can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 40 Investmet
Properties.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of itts property, plant and equipment and intan gible asscts at their previous GAAP carrying value.
Leases

Para 9 of Ind AS 116 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease at the inception of the contract or arrangeinent. A firs
time adopter may assess whether a contract existing at the date of transition to Ind ASs contains a lease by applying Ind AS 116 to those contracts on tt
basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.
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(iii) Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to measure nvestimients in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at either cost determined in accordance with
Ind AS 27 or decmed cost in its Standalone opening Ind AS Balance Sheet. The deemed cost of such an investment shall be its fair value at the entity’s date
of transition to Ind ASs in its standalong financial stalements or previous GAAP carrying amount at that date.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its investments in subsidiaries at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income for prior periods. The following tables represcnt the reconciliation from
previous GAAP to Ind AS:

B. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

As at April 1, 2022

Notes to first

timeadaption Amount as per Effect of transition Amount as per
previous GAAP* to Ind AS Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 4,781.73 - 4,781.73
Intangible asscts 5.92 - 592
Right-of-use assels (e) - 22.43 22.43
Capital work-in-progress £ o =
Financial assets
Investments - - -
Other financial assets (a) 521.80 (0.16) 521.64
Deferred tax assets (net) - - -
N Non-current tax assets (net) 24523 - 245.23
Other non-current assets (b) - 8.84 8.84
5,554.68 31.11 5,585.78
Current assets
Inveniories 14.79 - 14.79
Financial asscts
Trade receivables (c) 2,284.87 (38.88) 2,245.99
Cash and cash equivalents 877.16 - . 877.16
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.30 - 1.30
Other financial assets 293.84 - 293.84
Other current assets 25.20 - 25.20
3,497.15 (38.88) 3,458.28
9,051.83 (7.77) 9,044.06
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 200.00 - 200.00
Other equity ® (52.84) (19.98) (72.82)
147.16 (19.98) 127.18
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 5,021.11 . 5,021.11
Lease liabilities © - 18.27 18.27
Other financial liabilitics - - -
Provisions 20.66 - 20.66
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (2) 246.50 (10.06) 236.45
Other non-current liabilities - - -
5,288.27 8.21 5,296.48
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 2,385.63 - 2,385.62
Lease liabilities (e) - 3.99 3.9¢
Trade payables 268.24 - 268.2¢
Other financial liabilitics 251.25 - 251.2¢
Other current liahilities 82.17 - 82.17
Provisions 629.12 - 629.1%
3,616.41 3.99 3,620.4(
9,051.84 (7.77) 9,044.0

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confarm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

L,
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B. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

- As at March 31, 2023
Notes to first =
time adoption Amount as per Effect of transition Amount as per
previous GAAP* to Ind AS Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 4,53591 - 4,535.90
Intangible asscts 2.78 - 2.78
Right-of-use asscis (&) - 17.79 17.79
Capital work-in-progress - - -
Financial asscts
Investments - - -
Loans - - =
Other financial assels (a) 91.63 0.14) 91.49
Deferred tax assets (net) - - -
Non-current tax assets (net) 301.20 - 301.20
Other non-current asscts (b) - 28.08 28.08
4,931.52 45.73 4,977.23
Current assets
Inventories 11.76 - 11.76
e Financial assets
Trade receivables (©) 2,258.53 (111.68) 2,146 85
Cash and cash equivalents 698.67 - 698.67
Bank balances other than cush and cash equivalents 0.44 - 0.44
Loans - " .
Other financial assefs 247.09 - 247.10
Other current asscts 16.40 - 16.40
3,232.90 (111.68) 3,121.22
8,164.42 (65.95) 8,098.45
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equily share capital 200.00 - 200.0(
Other equity ® (359.52) (55.15) (414.66
(159.52) (55.15) (214.66
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 2,206.36 - 2,206.3
Lease liabilities (e) - 14.08 14.0
Other financial liabilities - - -
Provisions 28.60 - 28.6
s Deferred tax liabilities (net) () 263.98 (29.09) 234.8
2,498.94 (15.01) 2,483.9
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
Barrowings 3,982.60 - 3,982.5
Lease liabilities (e) - 4.19 4.1
Trade payables 176.28 - 176.2
Other financial liabilitics 776.75 - 776.7
Other current liabilities 86.79 - 86.7
Provisions 802.59 - 802.f
5,825.00 4.19 5,829.]
8,164.42 (65.97) 8,098.¢

% The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS pi esenlation requirements for the purposes of this nofe.
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C. Reconciliations of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2023

Notes to first Amount as per Effect of transition Amount as per
time adoption previous GAAP* to Ind AS Ind AS
Income
Revenue from operations 4,789.02 (0.00) 4,789.02
Other incoine 44 .40 0.00 44.40
Total Income 4,833.42 (0.00) 4,833.42
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 726.58 - 726.58
Changes in inventorics of stock-in-trade 3.03 - 3.03
Employee benefit expense (d) 999.56 6.03 1,005.59
Finance costs (c) 726.88 13.83 740.71
Depreciation and amortisation expense (e 295.51 4.64 300.15
Other expenses (c) 2,371.05 67.15 2,438.20
Total Expenses 5,122.60 91.66 5,214.26
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (289.18) (91.66) (380.84)
Less: Exceptional items _
Profit/(Loss) before tax (289.18) (91.66) (380.84)
Tax expenses
Current tax = s s
Income tax for earlier ycars - = -
Deferred tax charge/(benefit) (2) 17.47 (20.55) (3.08)
17.47 (20.55) (3.08)
Profit/(Loss) after tax (306.66) (71.11) (377.76)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of equity insiruments
- Remcasurement of defined benefit plans (d) - 6.03 6.0Z
- Income tax relating to these items (2) - (1.52) (1.52
- 4.51 4.51
Total comprehensive income/(loss) (306.66) (66.59) (373.25

=
~

% The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confarmi to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

D. Reconciliations of total equity as at March 31, 2023 and April 1, 2022

—~ Notes to first As at As at
time adoption March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022

Total equity as per previous GAAP (159.52) 147.1
Adjustments:

Opening adjustnients (19.98) -
Intercst income on security deposit using EIR method (a) 0.03 =
Financial Guarantee (b) 19.24 8.8
Expected credit loss on trade receivables (c) (72.81) (38.8¢
Depreciation of right-of-use asscls ©] (4.64) -
Finance cost on lease liabilities (e) (1.65) -
Reversal of lease rent expenscs (e) 5.64 -
Deferred Tax (g) 19.03 10.C
Total adjustments (55.13) (19.9¢
Total equity as per Ind AS ' (214.65) 127.1
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E. Reconciliations of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2023

Notes to first
time adoption

Profit after tax as per pievious GAAP

Adjustments:

Inierest income on security deposit using EIR method (a)
Financial Guarantee (b)
Expected credit loss on trade receivables ()
Gratuity Expenscs (d)
Depreciation of right-of-use asscts (e)
Finance cost on lease labilities (e)
Reversal of lease rent expenses (e)
Deferred Tax (g)

Total adjustments

Profit after tax as per Ind AS

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined bencfit plans (d)
- Income tax relating to these items (g)

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

F. Reconciliations of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

(306 66)

0.03
(12.17)
(72.81)

(6.03)

(4.64)

(1.65)

5.64

2051

(71.11)

G71.77)

6.03

(1.52)
(373.26)

Particulars Notes to first Amount as per Effect of transition Amount as per
time adoption previous GAAP to Ind AS Ind AS

Cash flows from operafing activities @ 848.06 924.43 1,772.4¢

Cash flows from investing activities (0)] 418.05 9.97) 408.0¢

Cash flows from financing activities @) (1,445.61) (913.45) (2,359.06

G. Notes to first-timie adoption:
(a) Security deposits

Under previous GAAP, there wus no specific guidance on accounting for interest free rental deposits. Whereas in Ind AS, the prepaid rent is measured ¢
the difference between the initial carrying amount of the deposit determined in accordance with Ind AS 109 and the amount of deposit given.

(b) Financial guarantee

Under Ind AS, financial guarantee coniracis are accounted as financial liabilities and measured initially at fair value and subscquently at the higher
amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount initially recognised less when approprial
the cumulative amount of ineome recognised in accordance with prineiples of Ind AS 115. Under previous GAAP, these were not recognised in the balan

sheet. As these financial guaranice have been given towards loans taken by its subsidiaries.

(¢c) Expected credit loss - ECL

Under Previous GAAP, provision for doubtful loans and receivables was calculated using incurred loss model. Under Ind AS, the provision on financ
assets and commitments, including trade receivables needs to be calculated using the expected credit loss model.

(c) Borrowings - Transaction costs

Under Previous GAAP, borrowings were recorded at cost and transaction costs were charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. Unc
Ind AS, transaction cost incurred towards origination of borrowings is required to be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on inil
recognition, These cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of interest expense by applying elfect.

interest rate method.
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(d)

(e)

(2)

(h)

(@

@

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind-AS, the company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian
GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losscs, are charged to the statement of profit or loss. However, Under Ind-AS, remecasurements
[comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Leases

Indian GAAP requires accounting of leases as either operating lease or finance lease. Ind AS 116 requires recognition of right-of-use asset and lease liability
for all leases except short term lease and lease of low value assets. Under Indian GAAP, the Company had accounted for its lease as operating lease and
recognised lease rent as expense in Statement of Profit & Loss.

Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requircs deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting
profits for the period. Ind-AS 12 "Income Taxes" requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance shect approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind-AS 12 approach has
resulted in recagnition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

Other comprehensive incomnie

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or Joss for the period, unless a standard requires or
permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as other
comprehensive income’ includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans and fair value gains or (losses) on FVOCI equity instruments. The concept of
other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

Other equity
Retained earnings have been impacted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

Statement of Cash Flows
The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.
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The Parliament of India has approved new Labour Codes which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund, Employee
State Insurance and Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. The
Company will earry out an evaluation of the impact and record the same in the financial statements in the period in which the Codes become
effective and the related rules are published.

The Company has received intimation from few of its vendors on requests made by the Company, with regard to registration of vendors under the
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Considering the Company has been extended credit period upto 45 days by
its vendors and payments being released on a timely basis in case of vendors been identified, there is no liability towards interest on delayed
payments under ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006’ during the year. There is also no amount of outstanding interest
in this regard, brought forward from previous yeass.

The Company docs not have any transactions with companies struck-off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956, during the current year and in the previous year.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is a lessee and the lease agreements are duly

As per the requirements of rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 the Company uses only such accounting softwares for maintaining its
books of account that have a feature of recording audit trail; except for some instances where either audit trail feature is not enabled or not operating
throughout the year. However, the Company established and maintained an adequate internal control framework over its financial reporting and
based on its asscssment, has concluded that the internal controls for the year ended March 31, 2024 were operating effectively

The company has complied with the layers Prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction
of number of layers) Rules, 2017

The Company does not have any Benami property under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder, where any
proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
undersianding that the Intermediary shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (U ltimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guaranice, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yel to be registered with Registrar of Companies ("ROC") beyond the statutory

period.

The Company has not done any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Ta

Act, 1961).




Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited
CIN: U85110DL2020PTC371416
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are T in lacs, unless stated otherwise)
68 The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on
wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
69 The Company has not used aiy borrowings from banks and financial inst itutions for purpose other than for which it was taken.
70 These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directars on September 28,2024
71 Pursuant to the notification issued by the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs dated March 24, 2021, in respect of changes incorporated in Schedule TII of

the Companies Act, 2013, the figures for the corresponding previous periods/year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them

comparable.

For Mehrotra & Mehrotra For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Kailash Super Speciality Hospital Private Limited

T A/kﬁgr{}u

CA Sanjay Ku Dr. Ajit Gupta Dr. Ankit Gupta
Partner Director Director
Membership Num DIN: 02865321
UDIN:
Rajesh Sharma
Director ChisfExecufive Officer
DIN: 02726305 PAN: AHDPS4524P
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: September 28, 2024 Date: September 28, 2024 Date: Septemnber 28, 2024



